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Board of Directors' Report

Samir Yaqoob Al Nafisi
Chairman

In the name of Allah, Most Gracious, Most Merciful.

On behalf of myself and the members of the Inovest Board
of Directors, | am pleased to present the Group annual report
for the financial year ending on the 31 of December 2014.

This year was one of significant awareness towards the
company’s internal functionality, and towards streamlining
it, such that the Board of Directors focused a good deal of
attention on resource optimization. It has been the intention
that this mandate apply to the performance of the Group
as a whole, such that coordinated efforts ultimately feed
back into the foundations for future strategic initiatives and
action plans; at the Group level that include not only cost
management, but also greater revenue maximization.

Company Performance

Throughout 2014, Inovest has been able to fulfill its legal
obligations towards an outstanding case; a matter that was
handled with a great deal of corporate finesse and with a
keen eye towards the Groups sustainability, such that our
ongoing business was not affected, and our dedication to
ongoing project development has not faltered in the least.

In tandem and as a case in point, the company took part in
a large scale tender set forth by the Kingdom of Bahrain’s
Ministry of Housing via a strategic alliance between the
Group’s construction subsidiary, Tamcon, and its Saudi
Arabian partner, Naba International Commercial Enterprises.
The partnership resulted in the signing of a BD75.56 million
contract for the provision of 1560 homes in the Southern
Governorate in the Kingdom of Bahrain; a contract that God
Willing will see fruition in 2015.

In spite of the buoyancy of such milestone successes this
has, as mentioned, been a difficult year. Accordingly, there
has been an unquestionably impact on the company's
performance, resulting in a net loss of US$ 3.84 million by
year end as compared to a loss of US$ 4.94 million at the
end of 2013. Principal to this end of year standing, and one
of the main reasons for it, was the provision against certain
trade receivables and investments in the amount of US$ 4.38
million.
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Future Outlook

Undoubtedly, our savvy investor base is well aware of recent
regional developments, marked perhaps most significantly
by the steep decline in oil prices. This represents quite a
challenge for oil-producing nations and particularly those in
the GCC for whom oil production represents a major artery
into our economic performance. There has accordingly
been some speculation on the impact of this price drop on
the volume of regional business. However, in our humble
opinion, we believe that larger infrastructural projects will not
be impacted by this, and will hopefully proceed as scheduled.

In regards to Inovest, we have accounted for possible strains
and also planned for potential opportunities. As such, we
intend to exit from a number of investments, and to employ
the resulting liquidity in reducing the financial burden across
the Group, whilst pursuing new investments as approved
by the new Board to improve the Company's streams of
revenues.

In closing

On behalf of the members of the Board of Directors, | would
like to express my sincere thanks and gratitude to our
shareholders, for their support and belief in the company
and its executive management. | would also like to extend
my appreciation to our strategic investors and partners,
who have played a significant role in sustaining the Group’s
business throughout the year. Furthermore, our collective
thanks go to our staff members whose dedication to their
work and sincere efforts cannot go unrecognized. Finally,
I would like to thank my fellow board members for their
time and considerable efforts dedicated to overcoming the
challenges we have faced.

We pray to Aimighty Allah to support us in achieving continued
success. Amen.

On behalf of the Board of Directors,

",

v

Samir Yaqoob Al-Nafisi
Board Chairman
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Interim CEO'’s
Message
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Mohammed E. Alnughaimish
Interim CEO

In the name of Allah, Most Gracious, Most Merciful.

As the reaches of trying economic conditions continue to
pressure the market, financial institutions and investment
companies, like ourselves, continue to assess and reassess
the means to overcoming economic challenges.

At the close of 2014, we are proud to have maneuvered a
year which has been demanding and difficult by all accounts.
This has included settlement of a claim to the tune of BD6.56
million, or USD17.39 million. As a result of this experience,
we are pleased to have included in our accomplishments,
a significant effort towards tightening our policies and
procedures to fall in line with a more stringent regulatory
environment. Though it was, and continues to be, a long
drawn process, its value is critical to our ongoing success;
such efforts have also provided the impetus for our resource
planning in the forthcoming year.

Our strategic choice to put into effect stringent measures
across the board has had its impact on our financial
performance this year. Despite achieving an operating profit
of US$539 thousand, after considering financial provisions
against a number of investments and certain receivables, we
have had to report an unrealized loss of US$ 3.8 million. This
remains 22% lower than the figures reported in our last fiscal
year, and in that we find validation of our strategy.

Continuing from this, we are pleased to report that the efforts
of our executive management towards improving cash flows
have had positive results, most specifically in the last quarter
of the year. The Board of Directors have played a laudable
role in supporting these efforts, and collectively, the team
endeavored to ensure that the company was able to recover
receivables previously classified as difficult and to accordingly
settle dues. This approach is a pragmatic one, focused on
securing liquidity and on handling financing expenses in an
appropriate manner.

In that vein, and in terms of our real estate investments, the
Group was able to market and exit some of its land holdings
in the Northern and Southern Governorate of the Kingdom
of Bahrain at a cumulative value that approximates US$16.1
million. The Group has utilized these funds prudently, and
in line with the aforementioned approach, of managing

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014

operating expenses and financing costs; the latter of which
allowed for a partial repayment of a credit facility at a value
of US$3.7 million decreasing the Group’s overall financial
obligations. The Group has also succeeded in negotiating
improved profit rates, as well as partially settling an existing
facility, through prepayment of US$1.5million that was due in
2016, therein reducing the Group’s overall fiscal obligations.
This strategy towards better cost management will be
maintained throughout 2015.

On the administrative front, with the resignation of the
company’s previous Managing Director, whose efforts are
noteworthy, a board decision was taken to install an Interim
CEO in order to maintain business continuity and the strategy
already underway. This motion comes with the mandated
Central Bank of Bahrain’s approval, and has affirmed a sense
of business stability, and a consistent work flow until the
time that a smooth transition of executive powers can be
transferred to a newly appointed Chief Executive Officer.

In this interim phase, the company directives have included
greater cost management, better resource utilization, and a
bearing to greater regulatory presence. This has, at the behest
of the Board of Directors, included a closer involvement of
Board members within activities of the Group, as well as
the activation of the company’s audit committees, risk and
governance roles. These actions are geared towards creating
a cleaner institutional presence, marked by professionalism
and diligence. To that end, the Group has maintained its
approach of absolute transparency with its stakeholders,
activating one to one communication and reporting channels.

In closing, | would like to extend my sincere thanks and
appreciation to the Inovest Board of Directors on the
consistent support and to all employees within the Group for
their dedication over the past year. We ask God Almighty to
guide us in our endeavors, and to lead us towards a brighter
future, that delivers upon our efforts in a manner that reflects
in the best interest of the Group and all its stakeholders.

o=

Mohammed Alnughaimish
Interim CEO
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Corporate Governance
Report

1. Corporate Governance Structure

The Company is governed by the Commercial Companies Law
promulgate by Legislative Decree No. 21 of 2001 (“Companies
Law”), Corporate Governance Code of the Kingdom of Bahrain
(“Governance Code”) , the HC Module of Volume 4 of the CBB Rule
Book, and the Bahrain Stock Exchange Law of 1987, generally
referred to as “Regulations”.

The Company undertakes its responsibility towards its shareholders
by adopting the highest standards of corporate governance.

The Company believes that the sound implementation of corporate
governance enhances shareholder value, and provides adequate
guidelines to the Board of Directors, its committees & Executive
Management, in order for them to perform their duties in a manner
that best serves the Company and its shareholders.

The Company seeks to achieve the highest level of transparency,
accountability and efficient management through the adoption
and pursuit of strategies, objectives and policies that ensure the
fulfilment of its organizational and ethical responsibilities.

2. Board of Directors

As of 31st December 2014, the Board of Directors comprised nine
members. The members of the Board were elected for a term of
three years, during the General Assembly meeting held on March
31st 2014. The term of the Board shall expire once election takes
place during the General Assembly meeting on 31 December 2016.

The Appointments and Remuneration Committee formed by the
Board of Directors reviews the skills and qualifications that the
prospective members of the Board of Directors must possess.
The General Assembly elects the new candidate after obtaining
majority votes in the ballot held for such purpose. Responsibilities
are distributed across the Board of Directors in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association and the Commercial
Companies Law. Membership of the Board of Directors may be
nullified in case, inter alia, the member commits a crime, breaches
trust or is declared bankrupt.

The chairman of the Board of Directors oversees the activities of
Executive Management and evaluate its performance regularly,
in addition to his other responsibilities, that include chairing
Board meetings, monitoring the performance of the CEO, and
communication with shareholders. The Board of Directors has
formed certain committees with specific powers for the sake
of guiding the management team, supervising the running of
operations and taking decisions in the Company. The Board
of Directors supervises the Company’s management directly &
through its various committees.

The Board of Directors has specified and segregated responsibilities
between the Board and the Executive Management. The Board
oversees all the activities of the Company and approves the
same. It is responsible for Risk Management, the preparation of
financial statements and corporate governance. The other issues
that require approval of the Board include, inter alia, approval of
financial statements, acquisitions and exits. The Board also ensures
observance of the basic values of the Company , as prescribed in
the internal policies of the Company.

The Risk Management Committee, reporting to the Board of
Directors, annually reviews and updates all Company policies. In
co-ordination with the Internal Audit Unit, the Risk Management
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Unit follows-up the validation and implementation of the policies
and procedures under the supervision of the relevant committees.
The Board of Directors is also responsible for approving Related
Party transactions, subject to the schedule of powers adopted
by the Company. Related Party transactions that are transacted
by members of the Board of Directors, in addition to any major
transactions undertaken by the Company that requires approval
of the Board of Directors, must be approved by the Executive
Committee. The Board of Directors is also responsible for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Company. The duties,
assignments and responsibilities of the Board of Directors have
been detailed within the corporate governance framework of the
Company.

The members of the Board communicate regularly with the
Company’s Executive Management. The CEO, in cooperation with
the management team, monitors the Company’s performance with
regard to specific objectives and conducts the Company’s daily
affairs pursuant to the policies, objectives, strategies and guidelines
adopted and approved by the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors consists of six non-executive members
and three independent member among a total of nine members.
Independent Board members must have highly professional and
specialized experience in their field of specialization and in the Real
Estate Investment field.

3. Members of the Board of Directors and their other
memberships

Date of
Date of First the end
Member .
Appointment of current
session
Non-
Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi | 2 June 2002 continuous
membership
Continuous
Fareed Soud Al-Fozan 2 June 2002 .
membership
Ahmed Rashed Al oo [Non
med Rashed Al-
2 June 2002 AGM, where continuous
Qattan ' Annual .
) membership
Abdulrahman Yousif 14 February reportis
Fakhro 2010 exzeded
Mohammed Ebraheem fobe
o 16 May 2011 approved, -
Alnughaimish
December
Bader Khalifa Al Adsani | 31 March 2014 -
2016.
Bashar Naser Al-Tuwaijri | 29 March 2011 -
Abdulnaser Abdulmohsin
. 31 March 2014 -
Al-Subaih
Ahmed Abbas 31 March 2014 -

1. Ahmed Rashed Al-Qattan's resignation from his posts on the Board of Directors and as CEO was
accepted by Ahmed Rashed Al-Qattan's resignation from his posts on the Board of Directors and as CEO
was accepted by the Board of Directors at Board Meeting (4 - 4 - 2014) on September 21st 2014.
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Corporate Governance

Report (continued)

4. Board members shareholding in the Company 5.3 Distribution of Share Ownership per Quantity
As of 31st December 2014, non-executive Board members  The following schedule shows the distribution of share
collectively held 1,943,514 shares in the Company. ownership as of 31st December 2013 as per shareholding
size:
Number Number - . Number of Ownership
of Shares of Shares CEEeRiEs INUMBEFOFSAAIES Shareholders %
Member as at 31 asat31 | Movement Less than 1% 103,225,453 785 36.03
December December
0
2013 2014 ghgnugfytoo less 117,475,100 18 41.00
1. Samir Yagoob . 5% up to less
Al-Nafisi 474,723 474,723 0.17 th;n E]:)O% 19,748,883 1 6.89
2. Fareed Soud 10% up to less
A Foan 962,650 962,650 - 0.34 0o 46,061,789 1 16.08
3. Ahmed Rashed Total 286,511,225 805 100
Al-Qattan 200,511 200,511 - 0.07
4. Abdulrahman 6. Board of Directors Committees
ousif Fakhro 49,530 49,5630 - 0.02
The Board of Directors formed four committees having
5. Mohammed " . .
Ebraheem Al- 78,050 78,050 . 0.03 specific assignments and powers:
Nughaimish
Executive Committee Positi Task
6. Jamal Abdul Members OSION S8
Rahman Al- - 100,000 - 0.03 A I
Rowaiyeh f - ® Approve Investment
ﬁzrf‘gir Yagoob Al Chairman Transactions
- iﬁizs\:awlfser 78,050 78050 ) 008 e Set Investment Limits
ég;?;? Rashed A1 vice Chairman
8.Dr.Mohammed 0.00 :
Abdulla Fahad o - - e Set Investment Policy
Abdulnaser Al Subaih Member
9. Talal Khalid Al- o B 0.00 ® Manage Assets & Liabilities
Nesef ’ Abdul Rahman Yousif Member
Fakhro  Manage Relationships with
Total 1,843,514 1,943,514 - 0.69 Regulators
Bashar Naser Al- Member
5. Distribution of Shareholding Tuwaijri * Manage Off-Balance Sheet
ems.

5.1 Distribution of Shares per Nationality

Audit Committee Members Position
As of 31 December 2014, the Company’s records show P——
. i i 1 L]
that there were 805 shareholders who own in total | Mohammed Ebraheem Alnughaimish | Chairman frernarAudl
286,511,225 shares. Following is the distribution of shares | Fareed Soud Al-Fozan Ch\a/:fr?wan * External Audit
in the Company per nationality: '
pany p Y Bader Al Adsani Member | ® Compliance
—— Number of Ownership Ahmed Abbas Member ¢ Anti-Money
Bahraini 20,946,275 7.32
Non-Bahraini | 265,564,950 92.68 NOrg'gf;:f}'i“tt‘zjﬁgig‘zz“o” Position Tasks
Total 286,511,225 100.00 -
. Mohammed Ebraheem Alnughaimish |  Chairman ¢ (B}omp.ensahon &
enefits
5.2  Shareholders Who Own 5% of Company’s Shares or Abdulnaser Al Subaih Member
M * Management
ore Issues
The following schedule shows numbgr and names of Abdul Rahman Yousit Fakhro Member | ® Governance &
shareholders who own 5% of Company’s shares or more: Compliance
Shareholders NUTLOE" 6 State Ownership % ® Human Resources
Shares
KFH Capital
Investment 46,061,789 Kuwait 16.08
Company
Dubai Islamic
‘ Bank ‘ 19,748,883 ‘ UAE ‘ 6.89 ‘
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Corporate Governance

Report (continued)

Risk Committee o
Position
Members
Bader Al Adsani - Member
Mohammed Ebraheem : * Risk Management
Alnughaimish - Chairman
® Risk Management

Fareed Soud Al-Fozan - Member Policy
Ahmed Abbas - Member

The meetings of the Board of Directors and those of the
committees are held when needed, in accordance with
the procedures issued for such purpose. The Board of
Directors meets no less than once every quarter. During
2014, the Board met seven times; the Annual General
Meeting of the Company was held on 31st March 2014.

The Audit Committee held four meetings, the Executive
Committee one meeting, Appointments and Remuneration
Committee seven meetings and the Risk Management
Committee three meetings.

The Board of Directors and the committees formed by it
receive periodical reports from Executive Management on
all aspects of the Company’s activities. The Board also
receives periodical reports from the Internal Audit Unit, Risk
Management Unit, and Finance Department.

Samir Yaqoob Al-Nafisi
Board Chairman
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Al-Nafisi has extensive management experience in a
number of different sectors including trading, and financial
services. He is currently General Manager of Yagoob Al-
Nafisi & Sons Company.

In addition to his position as Chairman of the Inovest Board
of Directors, he is also currently the Chairman of Al Khalegj
Development Company (Bahrain). Prior to this, he held
the Chairman’s post in Kuwait Finance House (Kuwait),
Muthana Investment Company (Kuwait), and International
Turnkey Systems (Kuwait). Mr. Al-Nafisi has equally
extensive experience of serving on the Boards of numerous
financial institutions and several prominent companies in
the GCC. To that effect, he has served a board member at
the Bahrain Islamic Bank, and Gulf Investment House, Gulf
Finance House, and Khalegji Commercial Bank (Bahrain)

Fareed Soud Al Fozan
Board Member and Vice Chairman
Non-Executive Director

Farid Saud Al-Fozan is currently the Vice-chairman of
Gulf Group Holding Company a Kuwaiti based company
that owns a number of specialist companies, in the fields
of engineering and manufacturing services, strategically
located throughout the GCC countries.

He is a board member on a number of investment, real
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estate and financial companies, namely: Boubyan Bank
(Kuwait), Gulf Real Estate (Saudi Arabia), Amlak Real Estate
Co. (Kuwait) SAFCORP (Kuwait). He is also a member
of the Committee on trade and transport in the Chamber
of Commerce and Industry of Kuwait. On a community
and social responsibility level, he is also the Chairman of
Young Arab Leaders Organization Kuwait Chapter, an NGO
that caters to the development of young, aspiring, and
distinguished youths in the region.

Mr. Al-Fozan graduated from Kuwait University with a
Bachelor Degree in Business Administration majoring in
Banking and Finance.

Ahmed Al Qattan
Managing Director and CEO

A Certified Public Accountant from Georgia State Board
of Accountancy, USA, Mr. Al- Qattan Has had extensive
experience within the executive arena. Of prominence, is
his previous position as a partner at Arthur Andersen in the
Kingdom of Bahrain and Chief Investment Officer at Gulf
Finance House; roles that have provided him with extensive
experience in the banking, manufacturing, oil and gas,
trading and contracting sectors.

He has duly served as Managing Director at Inovest, and
as a Vice Chairman of Al Khaleej Development Company
(Tameer), as well as a board member in a number of the
companies’ subsidiaries and associated companies. Mr.
Ahmed Al Qattan resigned from his CEO post and board
memberships, with the blessing and appreciation of the
Board of Directors in their meeting (42014-4-), which took
place on the 21st of September 2014.

Abdulrahman Fakhro
Board Member - Independent
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Fakhro has a long standing and successful history
as a board member and executive within numerous
organizations. Mr. Fakhro is the current Chairman of Yusif
Bin Yusif Fakhro B. S. C . and of the Bahrain Commercial
Facilities Company. Additionally he is a Board Member in
Batelco, and in General Organization for Social Insurance
(SIO); in the latter he also holds the position of Investment
Committee Chairman.

Mohammed Ebraheem Alnughaimish
Board Member
Interim CEO

Mr Alnughaimish holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration (MBA) from Maastricht School of Business.
Mr. Alnughaimish, who joined GIH in early 2002, is a Senior
Manager, running the International Fund Department (IFD)
and handling the Private Equity projects in DID.

Mr. Alnughaimish has held a number of positions such
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as a Board of Director in the Excellence Education Co.
(Kuwait) and Arkan AlKuwait Real Estate Co. (Kuwait) and
is currently a Board of Director in Inovest Co. (Bahrain) and
Gulf Real Estate in Saudi Arabia, Stronghaven, Inc. (USA)
and Transocean Capital, Inc. (USA).

Mr. Mohammed Alnughaimish, an MBA holder, has over 14
years of strategic experience in the fields of Investment and
Real Estate. Mr. Alnughaimish is recognized as a young
talent of high standing, in his achievements within the field,
and within the breadth of his management capability. To
that end, he serves of the Boards of a number of companies
including Gulf Real Estate (Saudi Arabia), Arkan AlKuwait
Real Estate Co. (Kuwait), Durrat Marina (Bahrain), Excellence
Education Co. (Kuwait), as well as in Stronghaven, Inc.
(USA), Halcore (USA, Al Khaleej Development Company -
Tameer (Bahrain), and TransOcean Capital (USA). Within
these posts, Mr. Alnughaimish has been functional on
several committee levels, inclusive of dealings related to
Audit, Risk, Governance, and Remuneration.

Bader Khalifa Al Adsani
Board Member
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Al Adsani’s membership in the Inovest Board of Directors
is both a quantitative and qualitative addition. In over 15
years of experience, Mr. AlAdsani has had dealings in the
petroleum industry, real estate investment, management,
and development. Currently, Mr. AlAdsani heads the Salhia
Real Estate Company’s Real Estate Management and
Development team.

Mr. AlAdsani is an active board member in Inovest,
AlAssima Real Estate Company, Kuwait Real Estate Union,
Kuwait Green Building Council, and also represents Salhia
Group in the Middle East Shopping Centers Council. He
additionally chairs the board of Durrat Marina in Bahrain.

Mr. AlAdsani holds a degree in Mechanical Engineering and
an MBA from Kuwait University, as well as a certificate for
leadership development from the Harvard Business School.

Bashar Naser Al Tuwaijri
Board Member
Non-Executive Director

A Bachelor Degree in Banking and Finance from Kuwait
University (1996), Mr. Al Tuwaijri joined GIH in 2004 handling
a number of senior investment, funding, and placement
posts, cumulating in his current role as Acting CEO for the
organization.

Mr. Al Tuwaijri also holds the position of Vice Chairman of
Amar Finance and Leasing Co. (Kuwait), Vice Chairman
of Madain Property Co. (Dubai), and Chairman of Afkar
Holdings (Kuwait). Mr. Al Tuwaijri is also the Vice Chairman
of Majan Development Co., Oman.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014

Between 1996 and 2003, Mr. Al Tuwaijri held several
positions at NBK before being appointed Corporate Credit
Manager. He is a certified Credit Director from the Institute
of Banking Studies.

Abdelnasser AlSubaih
Board Member
Non-Executive Director- Independent

Mr. AlSubaih has over 26 years of experience within the fields
of finance and investment. Mr. AlSubaih founded his career
within the areas of human resource management and audit.
Mr. AlSubaih retired from a significant tenure at KFH (Kuwait
Finance House) closing this chapter in his capacity as
Deputy General Manager of Investments. Within this term,
more than just investment structuring, asset management,
and liquidity control; Mr. AlSubaih was involved in corporate
strategy development, as well as establishing policies in
tandem to this strategy and to market conditions locally
and regionally.

Mr. AlSubaih is an active board member at Inovest, and
also at the Kuwait Association of Accounting and Auditing.
He has further served as the Board Chairman of the
Liquidity Management Centre (Kuwait), Vice Chairman of
the AIMuthanna Investment Company (Kuwait), as well as
a member the First Investment Company Board (Kuwait),
and the Hayat Investment Company (Kuwait) board.
Additionally, Mr. AlSubaih chaired the board of the Kuwait
Indian Holding Company (Kuwait).

Mr. Al Subaih holds a BSc in Accounting from the Florida
Memorial College in Miami, USA.

Ahmed Abbas
Board Member
Non-Executive Director — Independent

With over 28 years of financial experience to his name, in
treasury, capital markets, and investments; Mr. Abbas has
significant knowledge of both conventional and Islamic
financial practices. As CEO of Liquidity Management
Centre (LMC), Mr. Abbas has pioneered new short and long
term Islamic investment products and structures and has
been pivotal in navigating the company through the region’s
economic crisis, his leadership contributed to positive
returns for the Bank during its critical years, and continues
to do so.

Prior to this Mr. Abbas has held positions as the Head of
Proprietary Investments — Treasury & Marketable Securities
- at Arab Banking Corporation, Bahrain, and also as a
Portfolio Manager (Investment Unit of the Treasury & Capital
Markets Division) at the National Bank of Bahrain.

Mr. Abbas holds a BSc in Business Administration,
University of Bahrain. He holds an ISMA (International
Securities Market Association) professional qualification in
addition to various certificates in professional courses.
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7. Dates of Meeting of Board Committees

e  Board of Directors

The Board of Directors held a total of seven meetings during
2014.

2014 Meetings Dates

April| May | July | Sep | Nov |Dec| Dec | Attendance
] 5] 21 21 10 8 14 %
v X X X

60%

Members

Samir Yaqoob
Al-Nafisi

Fareed Soud
Al-Fozan

Ahmed Rashed
Al-Qattan

Abdulrahman
Yousif Fakhro

Mohammed
Ebraheem
Alnughaimish
Bader Khalifa
Al Adsani
Bashar Naser
Al-Tuwaijri
Ahmed Abbas | X X X

X | v | vV 86%

Vo | e0%

NURNIIE NN
SSIINI RN RN
SN IRNIIRNE RN

X X |V |V 70%

<
<
<
<
<
<
<

86%

100%

100%

60%

Abdulnaser
Abdulmohsin X | v |V
Alsubaih

ASANIRNIRN
NSIANIENIIRN
NSIANIENIRN
NSIANIENIRN

86%

e  Appointments and Remuneration Committee

The Appointments & Remuneration Committee held a total
of seven meetings during 2014.

2014 Meetings Dates

Members April | June | July | Oct | Nov | Nov | Nov |5y
29 | 1 |15 | 16 | 10 | 23 | 26 [ endance
2014 |2014|2014| 2014 |2014|2014 {2014 Q
Mohammed
Ebraheem vV I vVIivIiVv I IvI|v Vv ] 100%
Alnughaimish
Abdulnaser

Abdulmohsin v I VIV Vv VIV |V 100%
Alsubaih

Abdulrahman
Yousif Fakhro v vV YT 100%

e  Executive Committee

The Executive Committee held one meeting during 2014.

2014 Meetings Dates
Members
4 May 2014 Attendance %

Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi v 100%
Ahmed Rashed Al-Qattan v 100%
Abdulnlaser Abdulmohsin v 100%
Alsubaih

Abdulrahman Yousif Fakhro v 100%
Bashar Naser Al-Tuwaijri v 100%
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e Audit Committee

The Audit Committee held a total of four meetings during
2014.

2014 Meetings Dates

Members ‘Febﬁ‘ May 4 ‘ NOVQ‘ Dec7 | Attendance

2014 2014 2014 2014 %
Mohammed
Ebraheem X v v v 75%
Alnughaimish
Fareed Soud v v v v 100%
Al-Fozan
Bader Khalifa
Al Adsani v v v v 100%
Ahmed Abbas v v v v 100%

¢ Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee held a total of three
meetings during 2014.

2014 Meetings Dates

Members May 5 | Nov9 | Dec7 Attendance
2014 | 2014 | 2014

Bader Khalifa Al v v v 100
Adsani
Mohammed
Ebraheem v v v 100
Alnughaimish
Fareed Soud Al-
Fozan v v X 66.7
Ahmed Abbas v v v 100

8. Code of Ethics

The Board of Directors has adopted a code of ethics applying
to all the staff. This code defines how to deal with cases
involving conflicts of interest. It obliges all the members
of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, and all
employees to follow the highest professional measures and
care while performing their duties.

9. Compliance with Regulatory Authorities
Requirements

Being an Islamic Financial Institution, the Company
observes a Policy of compliance at all times with the rules
and regulations of regulatory authorities. It is Company
Policy to disclose all events of non-compliance whenever
they occur. Compliance has been improved through
ongoing enhancement of the governance framework, the
bedding-in of the comprehensive Corporate Governance
Guide , in accordance with the Corporate Governance
Code and CBB Rulebook HC Module, as prescribed in
the Central Bank of Bahrain Rule Book. The Corporate
Governance Guide includes a code of ethics for the Board
and all committees under it. It also includes a Conflicts of
Interest Policy, procedures for the reporting of offences,
basic guiding principles for corporate governance, Board
members' appointment agreement, Board members'
performance evaluation Policy, and an External Advisors
policy.
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Report (continued)

The Company continues to review and develop its corporate
governance framework, in accordance with the changing
requirements of regulatory authorities, and in compliance
with global corporate governance best practice. Also in
2014, the Company hosted a Corporate Governance
Awareness workshop for the Board of Directors, delivered
by industry-leading expertise in the field.

The Company, through the Board of Directors and its
committees, aims to meet the highest standards of
corporate governance, in the interest of its shareholders.

10. Religious Supervisory Committee

The Religious Supervisory Committee consists of three
members who monitor compliance by the Company with
the general principles and rules of Islamic Sharia, Fatwas,
resolutions and guidelines issued for such purpose. The
Committee’s reviews include examining and reviewing the
evidences related to the documents and the procedures
followed by the Company to ensure that all its activities and
business transactions are in compliance with the principles
and rules of Islamic Sharia. Following are the names of
members of the Religious Supervisory Committee with a
summarized profile of each.

Shaikh Dr. Mourad Boudaia
Chairman Shariah Supervisory Committee

Shaikh Dr. Boudaia holds several esteemed positions; as a
doctorate in Islamic Jurisprudence, he is also a researcher
and interpreter of the laws of jurisprudence in Kuwait, as well
as teacher working in collaboration with Kuwait University’s
College of Sharia. Shaikh Dr. Boudaia is a member of
several shariah committees in Qatar, and in a number of
committees dedicated to the knowledge and supervision
of shariah laws at the Ministry of Social Welfare in Kuwait.
He is an active participant in several conferences on the
knowledge and interpretation of Shariah laws, in Kuwait
and abroad. Shaikh Dr. Boudaia is a published author of
several research studies related to the principles of shariah
law.

Shaikh Dr. Dawoud Salman bin Essa
Vice Chairman Shariah Supervisory Committee

Shaikh Bin Essa holds a Bachelors degree in Shariah
sciences, and is well on his way to receiving a master’s
degree in Islamic Economic Studies. Shaikh Bin Essa has
long standing experience (since 2005) working in the fields
of audit and shariah compliance within several Shariah
compliant financial institutions within Kuwait. He is one
of the founders of the Kuwaiti based shariah consulting
company, and has been positioned as a member of the
Shariah Compliance Authority in Kuwait, and is an active
participant in numerous conferences and seminars on
Islamic jurisprudence and specifically in shariah compliance.

Shaikh Dr. Khaled Shoja’a Al-Otaibi
Member Shariah Supervisory Committee

Shaikh Dr. Al-Otaibi holds a doctorate in Islamic
Jurisprudence and its originating principles. He is a
member of the Faculty of Shariah and Islamic Studies -
Jurisprudence Department, and an assistant professor at
the Faculty of Basic Education. His background includes

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014

memberships in numerous committees including: member
in the Shariah Board of Kuwaiti House of Zakat, member of
the association of Jurisprudence and Shariah in America, a
former member of the council for mosques, former member
of the Committee for Endowments and Awagaf, a member of
the Shariah Board for Imtiyaz, a former member of the Shariah
Board for UIB (Bahrain), a former member of the Shariah
Commission associated with AIMashair for Hajj and Umrah
services, and a former member of the Shariah Commission
for Ain, a Takaful Insurance company.

11. Executive Management’s Committees

The Board of Directors has delegated the day-to-day
management of the Company’s affairs to the CEO who is
responsible for the implementation of the strategic plan of
the Company. The CEO manages the Company through the
following management committees:

Committee Name Primary Responsibilities

Management Corporate Strategy, Performance Assessment,
Committee Finance, HR, Administrative Issues

Manage the Balance Sheet, Financial,

Assets & Liabilities Management, Liquidity Management, Banking

Commitiee Relations
Execut!ve Review of Investments, Acquisitions, Exits (?)
Committee

Risk Management
Committee

Risk Management Policies, Risk Assessment,
Action-Plan Tracking

12. Executive Management and Senior Management

Following are the job titles of the members of the Executive
Management of the Company:

Ahmed Al Qattan
Managing Director and CEO

A Certified Public Accountant from Georgia State Board
of Accountancy, USA, Mr. Al- Qattan Has had extensive
experience within the executive arena. Of prominence, is
his previous position as a partner at Arthur Andersen in the
Kingdom of Bahrain and Chief Investment Officer at Gulf
Finance House; roles that have provided him with extensive
experience in the banking, manufacturing, oil and gas, trading
and contracting sectors.

He has duly served as Managing Director at Inovest, and as a
Vice Chairman of Al Khaleej Development Company (Tameer),
as well as a board member in a number of the companies’
subsidiaries and associated companies. Mr. Ahmed Al
Qattan resigned from his CEO post and board memberships,
with the blessing and appreciation of the Board of Directors
in their meeting (42014-4-), which took place on the 21st of
September 2014.
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Corporate Governance

Report (continued)

Mohammed Abdul Khaliq
Executive Director-Business Development

Prior to joining the group in 2004, Mr. Abdul Khalig held
a number of management positions with Bahrain Kuwait
Insurance Company in the Kingdom of Bahrain since
1995, and served as chairman of the industry committee
for property and casualty insurance in Bahrain. His board
memberships have included chairman of Coldwell Banker
Bahrain, vice chairman of Adhari Park Development
Company, board member of Real Estate Finance Company
(REEF), and board member of Bahrain Investment Wharf
Company.

Mr. Abdul Khaliq is an associate of the Chartered Insurance
Institute (ACIl), UK. He also holds a B.Sc. degree in civil
engineering from the University of Bahrain, and a member
of Bahrain Society of Engineers.

Murad Al Ramadan
Chief Investment Officer

Mr. Murad Al Ramadan is the Chief Investment Officer at
Inovest, an investment professional with more than 15
years industry experience in financial services, Investment
Banking, and real estate investment and development.

Mr. AlRamadan joined the group in 2009 as the deputy CEO
and Head of Investment of Inovest’s real estate investment
arm Al Khalegj Development Co. (Tameer), responsible for
originating and structuring investment opportunities as
well as managing the existing investment portfolio of the
group. Prior to joining Inovest, Mr. Al Ramadan worked
for Gulf Finance House (GFH) as an Investment Director
where he structured and managed real estate investment
transactions in excess of US$1bn .

Mr. Al Ramadan started his career in Accounting and
Auditing, holding various positions and has worked for
KPMG in Bahrain and Qatar.

Mr. Al Ramadan holds a B.Sc in Accounting from the
University of Bahrain, and an MBA (honors) from New York
Institute of technology (NYIT)-USA.

Mohamed Abdulla Isa
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Mohamed Isa joined Inovest in September 2004, and
has, since then, he played an instrumental role in achieving
several corporate milestones, including handling the
company’s Initial Public Offering, its cross-listing on Kuwait
Stock Exchange, its rights issue, the re-launch of its new
corporate identity and its corporate restructuring program.

Before joining Inovest, Mohamed worked for Unilever in
its offices in the United Arab Emirates and the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia. His last post with the company was that
of Regional Finance Manager for North Africa, Middle East
and Turkey.

Mr. Isa is a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) from Colorado
State Board of Accountancy and holds a Bachelor Degree
in Accounting from the University of Bahrain as well as
a Master of Business Administration (MBA) from the
University of Hull in the UK. It is also worth noting that Mr.
Isa is a Fellow of both the Chartered Management Institute
and the Institute of Leadership and Management in the
United Kingdom.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014

Hamad Zainalabedeen
Executive Director - Internal Audit

Hamad Zainalabedeen joined Inovest BSC in 2009 as the
Head of Internal Audit Department. Hamad has worked in
a number of local and world renowned financial institutions
and professional audit firms over the last 15 years with
extensive auditing experience in Islamic Investment Banks,
Investment  Businesses, Manufacturing  Enterprises,
Governmental Organizations and other sectors.

Prior to joining Inovest, Hamad held leading positions in
Internal Audit at Investment Dar Bank and Gulf Finance
House. Hamad also worked with Ernst & Young and Arthur
Andersen as an external auditor.

Hamad holds an Executive MBA and Bachelors of Science
in Accounting from the University of Bahrain.

13. Executive Management Shareholding
The following schedule shows the shareholding of the

Executive Management and the Senior Management as of
31st December 2013:

Number of Shares as | Number of Shares as

MigimeEE of 31 December 2013 | of 31 December 2014
Ahmed Rashed Al Qattan 200,511 200,511
Mohammed Abdul Khaliq 962,081 962,081

14. Executive Management Remuneration

The Company implements a short and long term
compensation scheme for the members of the Executive
Committee that has been developed based on the present
market situation. The Company also implements an
incentive scheme, through which the qualified employees
are granted shares and cash incentives once they reach the
pre-set targets. For more information, please refer to Note
23 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ending 31st December 2014. The Board members may
receive compensations for attending meetings and their
annual compensation shall be subject to the consent of the
shareholders at the year end.

15. Related Party Transactions

The details of related party transactions are shown under
Note 23 of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ending 31st December 2013. For further information,
the shareholders are requested to refer the aforesaid Note.

16. Compliance Control and Money Laundering
Combating

Compliance with the principles and provisions of Islamic
Sharia, and regulatory and statutory requirements are
a continuous process. The Company recognizes its
responsibility of compliance with all the related provisions
by implementing global best practice. The Company has
established a unit for regulatory control, to ensure adherence
to the guidelines & rules of the Central Bank of Bahrain.
This unit acts both to ensure observance of the principles of
Islamic Sharia and regulatory rules, and the implementation
of Compliance best practice.
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Corporate Governance

Report (continued)

The procedures for combating money laundering form a
major part of compliance assignments. The Company
maintains specific policies and procedures, approved by
the Board of Directors, for money laundering prevention.
These include a Client Due Diligence process, reporting
of suspicious transactions, periodical staff awareness and
training programs, & record -keeping, as well as the key
policy of appointment of an officer dedicated to money
laundering prevention.

Money laundering prevention Policy & Procedures are
reviewed annually by external auditors, who report their
findings to the Central Bank of Bahrain. The Company
is committed to combating money laundering, and to
implementing all AML rules, principles and guidelines issued
by the Central Bank of Bahrain. Pursuant to HC Module of
the CBB Rule Book (Volume 4 - HC Module) that refers to
the principle of «Comply or Explain», which provides that it
is necessary for the Company to interpret non-compliance
events with the recommendations prescribed in the Rule
Book, the Company is pleased to report that it is in the
process of establishing a Compliance framework that
meets the requirements of the Central Bank of Bahrain.
A dedicated Head of Risk & Compliance has joined the
company during 2014, with the task of reinforcing the
progress & growing maturity of the Company»s compliance
program.

17. External Auditor

The Company shall make available information on the
audit fees that are charged by the external auditor and the
other services which are provided by the external auditor
to shareholders upon request, provided that disclosure of
such information shall not negatively impact the interest of
the Company or its market competitiveness.

11 Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Shariah Supervisory
Committee Report

Sharia Supervisory Board Report on the Activities of Inovest BSC
For the Financial Year Ending on 31 December 2014

In the name of Allah, the Beneficent, the Merciful,

Prayers and Peace Upon the Last Apostle and Messenger, Our Prophet Mohammed, His Relatives and Companions.
The Shari’a Supervisory Board “The Board” of INOVEST B.S.C. has reviewed the Company activities and compared them
with the issued Fatwas and Rulings during the Financial Year Ending on 31 December 2014 and found them compatible

with them.

The Board believes that he has expressed its opinion in respect of the activities carried out by INOVEST and it is the
responsibility of the management to ensure the implementation of such decisions.

A representative of the company’s management explained and clarified the contents of the Financial Year Ending on 31
December 2014. The report of the Board has been prepared based on the information provided by the company.

The Board is satisfied that the activities and services carried by INOVEST are in compliance with the Glorious Islamic
Sharia’a.

Praise be to Allah, Lord of the Worlds. Prayers be upon Prophet Mohammed Peace Be Upon Him, Relatives and
Companions.

Shaikh Dr. Murad Bou Daia
Chairman

Shaikh Dawoud Salman Bin Essa
Vice Chairman

Shaikh Dr. Khalid Shuja'a Al-Otaibi
Member

12  Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014



Cudgil w0 Luwo 6. ludl gl odbiGuodl Gbluuall @.93.\.0 J2)
-\J.[0. i

8aagoll &xlloll ellgill Jga oy

LoA («@cgonolly 20 o | jLiioll) asylidl Lowila juiug (@4 jaindhy) 2o i gl 464y 6 \j\JLoJI)ﬁ}.oJJ 82090l doila)l (§udain Liod 26)
aypall dLo.CUl Y92 wlolaaiuulg jabnog Wloll (§gin \5\9 wlpilg aaoill ulédaillg Jasld sangoll pdlgéllg (M€ juowan P \5\3
g dyoluull a2yl aclgdg 5alo) 899 JoIb dcgonoll oljilg 8ang0)l dulloll ilgd)l oim slac] o) .aylul &Ja \5\9 o ol dbawd)
Loy Uio8 ol Gr8aill dLo.C| Wl Tsliwl 8390l dulloll pdlgdll oinm Jga @U <l ] g Ll gdao o .a4ddl 6)lal gudao dydgiuo (o

Glwwgol) d2aliollg Gumlaoll diym tye 853lall dpoluwll dylo)l wluwgol) §1811l pleol (899 Loy Liod gl G485l Jlocl ciod 28
oo A 81 g0l dullel eilgdll ()l dgbso wlagal gle Jgnall gudail Jlocl 34039 ylhad jyleell odm Lo willais dgollull dayloll
Uroring diall yulul gle 5330l Lol ilgll 58 laic anboll alalaly dlol) s3ugoll Al and §u8 1l (il duymga clas]
Bang0ll @&lloll ellgal olell yayell pusd clidg &ylall ladpal el dolal wlpyseily deiioll dnwlaoll aluol usss Loyl Gadasll

Ligly el Dga20 Lntuwl 1897 Loy Liod gl Gadail wilelpal i Lalaicly

iyl

09 ME prowys Pl 98 Lok dcgonoll sloll j410)l e dymgall algill &1on (o dlale 8)9n) 1125 81090l Aol pilgall i Lyl 58
LO_Qg Sydhel) s 6\9 aum il dwdd dgpuall dl_@cﬂl Y9:n wlolaaiuwlg jalnog Wloll §gba @Q Glpsillg aréill lailogaig laJlocl il
uollll ddlo]l wlnaw§old daljollg dunlaoll dum (e 8)alall ddlol uuwlaoll julseol

1Al outa il GLdhioll Joa jujpds
0l 2105 (€ AlaolD) GjApoll Gl Gpnol gl Judallg Guopadl égylail wls il ¢ild wbdiaio) l64g

g il elli &0 §0i5 8 309.0)l dlodl allgdll )lg dolaiio duywlao Wllawy Kding a4 il (|

Ba3g.0ll dyloll allgall g0 §aii &)l pulao 185 58 63)lg)l dlloll wilogloll (u
&yl M€ jomya Pl W9 diioll &l Ylls &85 od ail lole wiung dangoll &dloll pilgdll Joo | alaull 58 aul] jlico 9o Lo clidiiwbh
Gy ol gyl ol gf o)l wiluwdoll (ygildg s o)l il Wyn o (gild plaal gl gyl dy)laill wls il gild plaal wlellao
wleljalg aclgdg Loy déloioll wljhélly (uilgdllg 5 js ol guadl Wpno tlangig (1 alaoll o 828U olaablg € alaglh G0l gl
glol lmj4 0 gl A il Il ge Waw G pmgn JAidy 56 28 ang e @4 i) gunlwdl oliailg yugwlill xée planl gl gyailan)gy

a=yiull 1clgdg i5alos crojill 28 dcgonoll ylg Lisydas kel aygra laliyl) gl wilalallg ulogleell f1oa @ile &)lall (o Llan 1dg
aegonold dycyill Wl &um (Jud (o 8330l dgollunll

Ganet ¥

o .08y Lyl 148 Jaw
r.do yulpall

Ul daloo dolioll

1€ wJlodl jup sl Gpo.ud gl

I



13

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF INOVEST B.S.C.

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of Inovest B.S.C. (the "Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the "Group”), as of 31 December 2014, and the related consolidated statements of income,
cash flows, changes in owners' equity and sources and uses of charity fund for the year then ended. These consolidated
financial statements and the Group's undertaking to operate in accordance with Islamic Shari’a Rules and Principles are
the responsibility of the Company's Board of Directors. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Auditing Standards for Islamic Financial Institutions issued by the Accounting
and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions ("AAOIFI"). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated financial statements presentation. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Group as of 31 December 2014, the results of its operations, its cash flows, changes in owners> equity and
sources and uses of charity fund for the year then ended in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards issued
by AAOIFI.

Report on other regulatory requirements

As required by the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law and the Central Bank of Bahrain ("CBB") Rule Book (Volume 4),
we report that:

a) the Company has maintained proper accounting records and the consolidated financial statements are in agreement
therewith; and

b) the financial information contained in the Report of the Board of Directors is consistent with the consolidated financial
statements.

Except for what has been reported in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, we are not aware of any violations
of the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, the Central Bank of Bahrain and Financial Institutions Law, the CBB Rule
Book (Volume 4 and applicable provisions of Volume 6) and CBB directives, regulations and associated resolutions, rules
and procedures of the Bahrain Bourse or the terms of the Company's memorandum and articles of association during
the year ended 31 December 2014 that might have had a material adverse effect on the business of the Company or on
its financial position. Satisfactory explanations and information have been provided to us by management in response to
all our requests. The Group has also complied with the Islamic Shari’a Rules and Principles as determined by the Shari’a
Supervisory Board of the Group.

Gt +

Partner's registration no: 115
11 February 2015

Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

Notes 2014 2013

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5 8,515 17477
Trade and other receivables 6 62,857 61,002
Investments 7 23,055 23,430
Investment in a joint venture and associates 8 94,531 98,245
Investments in real estate 9 65,773 81,114
Properties under development 5,585 5,066
Property, plant and equipment 10 7,807 7,075
Total assets 268,123 293,109
LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 11 69,693 86,867
liara and murabaha financing 12 35,983 39,957
Total liabilities 105,676 126,824
Owners’ Equity
Share capital 13 114,604 114,604
Less: treasury shares 13 (651) (651)

113,953 113,953
Share premium 14 30,760 30,760
Reserves 14 21,515 21,508
Accumulated losses) / retained earnings) (8,781) 64
Total owners' equity 162,447 166,285
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS’ EQUITY 268,123 293,109

These consolidated financial statements, set out on pages 14 to 45 , were approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 11 February 2015 and signed on their behalf by:

-

Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi Mohammed E. Alnughaimish
Chairman Interim CEO

14 Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Expressed in US$000’s)

Notes 2014 2013
OPERATING INCOME
Income from investment in real estate 15 5,507 5,657
Income from investments 16 230 573
Income from advisory services 17 904 4,010
Net income from construction contracts 18 2,243 764
Net share of profit / (loss) from investment in a joint venture and associates 8 832 (901)
Other income 19 3,538 1,904
Total operating income 13,254 12,007
OPERATING EXPENSES
Staff costs 20 5,680 4,585
General and administrative expenses 21 3,205 3,093
liara and Murabaha financing costs 3,000 3,471
Property related expenses 178 134
Depreciation 10 652 738
Total operating expenses 12,715 12,021
NET OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS) 539 (14)
Provision - net 22 (4,384) (4,929)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (3,845) (4,943)
BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE (US cents) 23 (1.35) (1.74)

Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi
Chairman
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Inovest B.S.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN OWNERS’ EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

Share Treasury Share  Statutory Shgre Retained
. . option . Total

capital shares  premium reserve earnings

reserve

Balance at 1 January 2014 114,604 (651) 30,760 21,473 85 64 166,285
Net loss for the year - - - - - (3,845) (3,845)
Share option charge (net) - - - - 7 - 7
Balance at 31 December 2014 114,604 (651) 30,760 21,4783 42 (3,781) 162,447
Balance at 1 January 2013 114,604 (651) 30,760 21,473 28 5,007 171,221
Net loss for the year - - - - - (4,943) (4,943)
Share option charge (net) - - - - 7 - 7
Balance at 31 December 2013 114,604 (651) 30,760 21,473 35 64 166,285

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SOURCES AND USES OF CHARITY FUND FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Expressed in US$000’s)

2014 2013
Sources of charity fund
Undistributed charity funds at the beginning of the year 629 642
Contributions by the Company - -
Total sources of charity funds during the year 629 642
Uses of charity funds
Contributions for charitable purposes 3 13
Total uses of funds during the year 3 13
Undistributed charity fund at 31 December 626 629
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Inovest B.S.C.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

Note 2014 2013
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss for the year (8,845) (4,943)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation 10 948 977
Charge on share option plan 7 7
Net provision charge (write back) for impaired receivables 6 3,897 (102)
Provision for case compensation 22 - 3,288
Net share of (profit) / loss from investment in a joint venture and associates 8 (832) 901
Realised gain (loss) on sale of investment in real estate (1,613) 1,043
Unrealised fair value loss on investment in real estate 9 - 171
Net impairment loss on investments 7 237 1,743

(1,201) 3,085
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade and other receivables (5,752) 3,715
Trade and other payables (17,174) 4,081
Net cash (used in) from operating activities (24,127) 10,881
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Net movement in Murabaha financing - 3,760
Purchase of investments 7 - (2,500)
Proceeds from sale of investment 138 -
Purchase of investment in real estate - (268)
Proceeds from sale of investment in real estate - net 16,954 6,522
Additions to properties under development (5619 (3,273)
Purchase of investment in a joint venture and associates 8 - (16,627)
Pro:g:g; ;rt(;rsn capital redemption from investment in a joint venture and 8 567 11,832
Dividends received from a joint venture and associates 8 3,979 398
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 10 (1,683) (870)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3 24
Net cash from (used in) investing activities 19,439 (502)
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Net movement in Murabaha financing 12 (3,974) 689
Net cash (used in) from financing activity (3,974) 689
(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (8,662) 11,068
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 17,177 6,109
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 5 8,515 17,177
Non cash transactions comprise:
Transfer of investment in real estate to properties under development 9 - 1,793
Transfer of investments to investments in a joint venture and associates 8 - 3,938
Settlement of trade receivables through acquisition of investment in real estate 15 - 3,331
Settlement of related party payables by transfer of investment in real estate = 2,554

- 11,616
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION AND ACTIVITIES

a) Incorporation

Inovest B.S.C. (the “Company”) is a public shareholding company incorporated in the Kingdom of Bahrain on 18 June
2002 and operates under Commercial Registration (CR) number 48848. The Company commenced operations on
1 October 2002. Under the terms of its Memorandum and Articles of Association, the duration of the Company is
50 years, renewable for further similar periods unless terminated earlier by law or as stated in the Memorandum and
Articles of Association. The address of the Company’s registered office is 20th floor, East Tower, Bahrain Financial
Harbour, Manama, Kingdom of Bahrain.

The Company is listed on the Bahrain Bourse and cross-listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange.

The Company operates under an Investment Business Firm License — Category 1 (Islamic Principles) issued by the
Central Bank of Bahrain (“CBB”), to operate under the Islamic Shari’a principles, and is supervised and regulated by
the CBB.

b) Activities
The principal activities of the Company together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) include:

- Engaging directly in all types of investments, including direct investment and securities, and various types of
investment funds;

- Establishing and managing various investment funds;

- Dealing in financial instruments in the local, regional and international markets;

- Providing information and studies related to different types of investments for others;

- Providing financial services and investment consultations to others;

- Establishing joint ventures with real estate, industrial and services companies inside or outside the Kingdom
of Bahrain and committing to operate under the Islamic Shari’a principles;

- Engaging in contracting activities;

- Engaging in the management of commercial and industrial centers and residential buildings, property leasing,
development and their maintenance; and

- Having interest in or participating in any way with companies and other entities engaged in similar activities
that may work and co-operate to achieve the Group’s objectives inside and outside the Kingdom of Bahrain,
and also merge its activities with the above mentioned entities and/or buy or join with them.

Although the Company has an Investment Business Firm License — Category 1 (Islamic Principles) issued by the
CBB in September 2008, it continues to hold real estate assets and related revenues and costs in its consolidated
financial statements. These assets existed prior to obtaining the license from the CBB. The Company has
transferred its entire real estate assets and the related revenues and costs to its fully owned subsidiary, Al Khalegj
Development Co. B.S.C.(c), which primarily carries out real estate and construction related activities. Since Al
Khaleej Development Co. B.S.C.(c) is fully owned by the Company, the real estate assets and revenues and costs
continue to appear in the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.
Notes 9, 12, 15 and 18 in these consolidated financial statements reflect the Group’s transactions arising from
holding of real estate assets and their corresponding liabilities and revenues and costs arising therefrom.

The number of staff employed by the Group as at 31 December 2014 was 670 (31 December 2013: 527).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
Board of Directors dated 11 February 2015.
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Financial Accounting Standards issued by
the Accounting and Auditing Organisation for Islamic Financial Institutions (“AAQIFI”), the Shari’a Rules and Principles
as determined by the Shari’a Supervisory Board of the Group, the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law, the CBB,
Financial Institutions Law, the CBB Rule Book (Volume 4 and applicable provisions of Volume 6), CBB directives,
regulations and associated resolutions, rules and procedures of the Bahrain Bourse and the terms of the Company’s
memorandum and articles of association. In accordance with the requirements of AAOIFI, for matters for which no
AAOIFI standard exists, the Group uses the relevant International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) issued by
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).

2.2 Accounting convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for investment in a joint
venture and associates which are equity accounted, equity-type instruments at fair value through equity and investment
in real estate that have been measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in United
States Dollars (“US Dollars”) being the reporting currency of the Group. All values are rounded to the nearest US Dollar
thousands unless otherwise indicated.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as at
and for the year ended 31 December each year. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting year as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Subsidiary is fully consolidated from the date control is transferred to the Company and continue to be consolidated
until the date that control ceases. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Non-controlling interest in a subsidiary’s net assets is reported as a separate item in the Group’s owners’ equity. In the
consolidated statement of income, non-controlling interest is included in net profit, and shown separately from that of
the shareholders.

Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business combination and
the non-controlling interests’ share of changes in owners’ equity since the date of combination. Losses applicable to
the non-controlling interest in excess of the non-controlling interest in a subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the
interests of the Group except to the extent that the non-controlling interest has a binding obligation and is able to make
an additional investment to cover the losses.

Transactions with non-controlling interests are handled in the same way as transactions with external parties. Sale of
participations to non-controlling interests result in a gain or loss that is recognised in the consolidated statement of
income. Changes in the ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transaction.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (continued)

The following are the principal subsidiaries of the Company, which are consolidated in these consolidated financial
statements:

Name of the subsidiary Ownership
Held directly by the 2014 and
Company 2013

Country of Year of

. . . . Activity
incorporation | incorporation

Purchase, sale,

Al Khaleej Development 5 Kingdom of management and
Co.B.S.C. (¢ 99.96% Bahrain 2009 development of

properties

Holds the Group’s

shares on behalf
Tameer for Private 5 Kingdom of of its employees
Management W.L.L. 99.00% Bahrain 2004 in respect of the
employees’ share

option plan

The following are the subsidiaries held indirectly through Al Knhaleej Development Co. B.S.C. (c):

Name of the subsidiary Ownership Countrv of Year of
Held indirectly by the 2014 and . e . . Activity
incorporation | incorporation
Company 2013
Development,
maintenance,
leasing and
Bahrain Investment Wharf 5 Kingdom of management of
B.S.C. (¢ 99.00% Bahrain 2006 commercial and
industrial centers,
residential buildings
and property
. . . Management and
Circo Total Facility 99.00% ngdom of 2005 maintenance of
Management Co. W.L.L. Bahrain .
properties
Tamcon Contracting Co. 5 Kingdom of Contracting
(B.S.C.(c 99.00% Bahrain 2007 activities

The consolidated financial statements of the subsidiaries have been consolidated as though the Company owns 100%

of these subsidiaries, as the other shareholders hold their shares on behalf of and for the beneficial interest of the
Company.

21 Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014



1€ jaoumna Pl g8 s 6aag0ll dlloll pilgdll Jga wialay)
(dpayp001 W)l WU &iguo &Ll

dawlaodl Glwball el gaslo P

Ll Lol &l 98 love Ll o3 el @ylino 530l dulloll Slgall slac] 98 dsrioll dppwlaoll wlwlul )|

LA 9 log 28l A
&lagg Wgil 5a) 83n)lg Ggainll G 265 gle a8l ulddal 8angoll doiléll (59 aull jLiro g Los Ao (59 log 28Ul Jouiu
JS1 gl yon il &l 6i6) dulal Gloniuwl aylgiy Jabl 8jn bl anlyoll

iaslioll Jugoill
oin Jhot Jlaoall aasog dagel byl paus a2 2)aig fudl wbdlailg (@aloll) &l wlloleo wbdlasl gle dljoll (ol
E99x 0]l Julool) dalell doudll rgé2llodm @)ad.logy 1. (gJ] Al (yuu Lo (GLéniwl 8] o)l vl goll 5 ) deagoll ol vllygoil

celpidl wliad lojlo dlyoll agéc w9 acglldegonoll iei Jlooall puun 1)

6yl poig digaodylaipos 2
&ron d2alio gle iy dlaoaoll dipaoll 4ylail poil) 1565 Joc jodyg lm61817 &dgioll looydy diyaoll dyylaill po il gljal piy
Al gyl 58 @8a o)l §loll

wlylodGuwll .5
sglaill 348 llicg aylbe Ghlobiuly G9aall ot Aslell Godlly ol UAloll G9n mal gl e Whlotiul Joiis
Ao wla g ¢yl Egpui O@QUU $lg

98l o Walell doydlly da)a0)l 448 o)l Ggia ol wlgal

wwlid 8ale] oy clU8Yl a2y . Jaal) 8ang0ll dolld)l (ons dslell dosblly loossi oy ol gl dlloll wlgall gron 0im (ol
o Wlloll §gba 98 dbbaoll e Sluall ol awlboll wlil o @alell 4oyl Ggonll (o dalell dordlly dbinoll ljlodiuwll
o)l Gg8 o 1o dauioll doaliiell 5)luall ol LA ol ulil iy o xisd lagho jloiiwll auny losic gl jloiiwll sy
Jaal sangoll doilall g

iyylac wlyloiiuwl

W lo il Jumu oy dylic alloiwls o4l gl loiosd g8 a0l (o 6alaiuwll gl jlagll iyl Loy héiasllwlles)l b ins oy
6ale) oy qsdaroll Wl Ay leslly dayiioll (Li8l @ latg €990l Julboll dlalell doydll A gilly dalaill Lo dylesl
@o5la)l (99 dlalell dosbll Galiinla (Luwlboll had) dlalell dossll g8 win2ill alil &o dalell dossll dylesl aljlotiumll yulid
o)l Ggba 58 wlp2ill sang0ll

o8 ylasll slesil iy loaie Jaal 63g.0)l @03l gd dylasell whlotwll dslell dordll 58 wlsill (o dastl sluall wbs iy
Jaal 53ng.0)l @658l gJ] ladygai oy sleaiwll (o dailil iluall of wawlboll

J2ohbil a8 wljléc

09 o=y iyl ghilly bl dlajo 58 ol &alicll Jlocll Gon sl Uiy Loy kéiagll uhlasll polaill 38 whlesl Jio
ol lmialas (po gusly @jaig Lol cliug jyglnil ayaluel Jloel (o 6314 50) wlaill gle jyghill 338 wiljléell (oA ti Jabdiwoll
&l 80145 L8l @slsll doysll

e Jgnall §8giy Vg polaaiull (o dyilmi 6)gny jliell wnw oy loaic gl lovsleyiwl oy loaic pglaill 38 wiljlés)l sleyiwl oy
ool sangoll doilall g8 jyghill a8 whlasll slesiwl (o pHlus gl wawlso gl vl oy e slesiwl (o &l 8iuwo &yalaidl gdlio

. ‘ pidin £9piiog dluoj wilyds @8 whloiiuwl
yiniio Egpino gl &by @i W) Gamg Ligo 13995 dcgonoll loyle yujlod Gl duawgoll g @pojll a4yl o)

1€ eJlodl jup sl Gpo. gl gl

rr



22

Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are consistent
with those of the previous financial year.

a. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents as referred to in the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise cash in hand, bank
balances and short term Murabaha deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

b. Murabaha financing

Murabaha consists of sale transaction agreements (Murabaha) and commmodity agreements stated at net of deferred
profit and provision for impairment. These are amounts placed with financial institutions with maturity between 91
and 360 days. The contracts are stated at fair value of consideration given less impairment. The Group considers the
promise made in Murabaha to the purchase orderer as obligatory.

c. Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables are carried at their anticipated values. An estimate is made for impaired trade receivables based on a
review of all outstanding amounts at the year end.

d. Investments
Investments comprise equity-type instruments at fair value through equity, investment in real estate, properties under
development and investment in a joint venture and associates.

Equity-type instruments at fair value through equity

This includes all equity-type instruments that are not fair valued through consolidated statement of income. Subsequent
to acquisition, investments designated at fair value through equity are re-measured at fair value with unrealised gains
or losses recognised in owners’ equity until the investment is derecognised or determined to be impaired at which time
the cumulative gain or loss previously recorded in owners’ equity is recognised in consolidated statement of income.

Investment in real estate

Properties held for rental, or for capital appreciation purposes, or both, are classified as investment in real estate.
Investments in real estate are initially recorded at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and acquisition
charges associated with the property. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment in real estate are re-measured at fair
value and changes in fair value (only gains) are recognised through the consolidated statement of owners’ equity.

Losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment in real estate are recognised in the consolidated statement
of income. When the property is disposed of, the gains or losses arising on disposal is taken to the consolidated
statement of income.

Properties under development

Properties under development represent properties held for sale in the ordinary course of business or in the process
of construction and development for its future sale. Properties under development include expenditure incurred in the
normal course of developing and constructing the property and are stated at lower of cost or fair value less cost to
sell.

Properties under development are derecognised when they have either been disposed off, or when the property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gains or losses on derecognition
of a property under development are recognised in the consolidated statement of income in the year of derecognition.

Investment in associates and a joint venture
An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint
venture.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

d. Investments (continued)

Investment in associates and a joint venture (continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

Under the equity method, investment in associates and a joint venture are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets of the associates and joint
venture. The consolidated statement of income reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associates
and joint venture. Where there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associates and joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes and discloses this, when applicable, in the consolidated statement
of changes in owners’ equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and the
associates and joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associates and joint venture.

The reporting dates of associates and joint venture and the Group are identical and the associates’ and joint venture’s
accounting policies conform to those used by the Group for like transactions and events in similar circumstances.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an impairment loss
on the Group’s investment in associates and joint venture. The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that investment in associates or joint venture is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as being the difference between the recoverable amount of associates and joint
venture and its carrying value and recognises the impairment in the consolidated statement of income.

e. Fair values

Fair value is the value representing the estimate of the amount of cash or cash equivalent that would be received for
an asset sold or the amount of cash or cash equivalent paid for a liability extinguished or transferred in an orderly
transaction between a willing buyer and a willing seller at the measurement date.

Fair value is determined for each financial asset individually in accordance with the valuation policies set out below:

(i) For investments that are traded in organised financial markets, fair value is determined by reference to the quoted
market bid prices prevailing on the consolidated statement of financial position date.

(i) For unquoted investments, fair value is determined by reference to recent significant buy or sell transactions with
third parties that are either completed or are in progress. Where no recent significant transactions have been completed
or are in progress, fair value is determined by reference to the current market value of similar investments. For others,
the fair value is based on the net present value of estimated future cash flows, or other relevant valuation methods.

(i) Forinvestments that have fixed or determinable cash flows, fair value is based on the net present value of estimated
future cash flows determined by the Group using current profit rates for investments with similar terms and risk
characteristics.

(iv) Investments which cannot be remeasured to fair value using any of the above techniques are carried at cost, less
provision for impairment.
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

f. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Depreciation on premises and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful
lives:

Building on leasehold land 25 years
Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 3-5 years
Computer hardware and software 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

g. Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether
billed by the supplier or not.

h. ljara and murabaha financing
liara and murabaha financing are recognised initially at the proceeds received, net of transaction cost incurred. Subsequently,
these are carried at amortised cost.

i. Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are deducted from the equity of the parent and accounted
for at weighted average cost. Consideration paid or received on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s
own equity instruments is recognised directly in the equity of the parent. No gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
statement of income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of own equity instruments.

j. Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

(i) Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

® the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and

e either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

(i) Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

k. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event and
the costs to settle the obligation are both probable and reliably measurable. Provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risk specific to the liability.

. Amortised cost measurement

The amortised cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is measured at
initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective profit rate
method of any difference between the initial amount recognised and the maturity amount, minus any reduction for
impairment for financial assets.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

m. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the Group intends to
either settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

n. Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

(i) Income from properties
Rental income arising from operating leases on investment in real estate is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included under revenue in the consolidated statement of income due to its operating nature.

(i) Income from advisory services

Income from advisory services and project management fees are recognised based on the stage of completion of the
service at the consolidated statement of financial position date by reference to the contractual terms agreed between
the parties.

(iii) Income from investments
Income from investments is recognised when earned.

(iv) Income from construction contracts
Contract income is recognised under the percentage of completion method.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised by reference to
the stage of physical completion of the contract. Contract income and costs are recognised as income and expenses
in the consolidated statement of income in the accounting year in which the work is performed. The contract income
is matched with the contract costs incurred in reaching the stage of completion, resulting in the reporting of income,
expenses and profit which can be attributed to the proportion of work completed. Profits expected to be realised on
construction contracts are based on estimates of total income and cost at completion.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, the contract income is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred up to the year end where it is probable those costs will be recoverable. Contract costs
are recognised when incurred. The excess of progress billings over contract costs is classified under trade and other
payables as due to customers for construction contracts.

Losses on contracts are assessed on an individual contract basis and if estimates of cost to complete the construction
contracts indicate losses, provision is made for the full losses anticipated in the period in which they are first
identified.

The aggregate of the costs incurred and the profit or loss recognised on each contract is compared against the
progress billings up to the year end. Where the sum of the costs incurred and recognised profit or loss exceeds the
progress billings, the balance is shown under trade and other receivables as due from customers for construction
contracts. Where the progress billings exceed the sum of costs incurred and recognised profit or loss, the balance is
shown under trade and other payables as due to customers for construction contracts.

0. Shari’a supervisory board
The Group’s business activities are subject to the supervision of a Shari’a supervisory board consisting of three members
appointed by the general assembly.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

p- Earnings prohibited by Shari’a
The Group is committed to avoid recognising any income generated from non-Islamic sources. Accordingly, all non-
Islamic income is credited to a charity account where the Group uses these funds for various social welfare activities.

q. Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into United States Dollars at functional currency
rates of exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date. Any gains or losses are recognised in the
consolidated statement of income.

r. Employees’ end of service benefits

Bahraini employees are covered by the Social Insurance Organisation scheme which comprises a defined contribution
scheme to which the Group contributes a monthly sum based on a fixed percentage of the salary. The contribution is
recognised as an expense in the consolidated statement of income.

The Group provides end of service benefits to its non-Bahraini employees. Entitlement to these benefits is usually
based upon the employees’ length of service and the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs
of these benefits which comprise a defined benefit scheme are accrued over the period of employment based on the
notional amount payable if all employees had left at the statement of financial position date.

s. Impairment of financial assets

An assessment is made at each financial position date to determine whether there is objective evidence that a specific
financial asset or a group of financial assets may be impaired. If such evidence exists, the estimated recoverable
amount of that asset is determined and any impairment loss, based on the assessment by the Group of the estimated
cash equivalent value, is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Specific provisions are created to
reduce all impaired financial contracts to their realisable cash equivalent value. Financial assets are written off only in
circumstances where effectively all possible means of recovery have been exhausted.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment value was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed.
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of income.

In the case of equity-type instruments at fair value through equity, impairment is reflected directly as write down of the
financial asset. Impairment losses on equity-type instruments at fair value through equity are not reversed through the
consolidated statement of income, while any subsequent increase in their fair value are recognised directly in owners’
equity.

t. Events after the statement of financial position date

The consolidated financial statements are adjusted to reflect events that occurred between the statement of financial
position date and the date the consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue, provided they give evidence
of conditions that existed as of the statement of financial position date. Events that are indicative of conditions that
arose after the statement of financial position date are disclosed, but do not result in an adjustment to the consolidated
financial statements.

u. Zakah
Individual shareholders are responsible for payment of Zakah.
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in
future periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Classification of investments

Management decides on acquisition of an investment, whether it should be classified as equity-type instrument at fair
value through the consolidated statement of income, equity-type instruments at fair value through equity or debt-type
instrument at amortised cost.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments,
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Going concern

The Group’s management has made an assessment of its ability to continue as a going concern and is satisfied that
it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the management is not aware of
any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
Therefore, the consolidated financial statements continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

Fair valuation of investments
The determination of fair values of unquoted investments requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that may affect the reported amount of assets at the date of consolidated financial statements.

Nonetheless, the actual amount that is realised in a future transaction may differ from the current estimate of fair value
and may still be outside management estimates, given the inherent uncertainty surrounding valuation of unquoted
investments.

Special purpose entities

The Group sponsors the formation of special purpose entities (“SPE”) primarily for the purpose of allowing clients to hold
investments. The Group provides corporate administration, investment management and advisory services to these
SPEs, which involve the Group making decisions on behalf of such entities. The Group administers and manages these
entities on behalf of its clients, who are by and large third parties and are the economic beneficiaries of the underlying
investments. The Group does not consolidate SPEs that it does not have the power to control. In determining whether
the Group has the power to control an SPE, judgments are made about the objectives of the SPE’s activities, its
exposure to the risks and rewards, as well as about the Group intention and ability to make operational decisions for
the SPE and whether the Group derives benefits from such decisions.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
Estimates and assumptions (continued)

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

An assessment is made at each statement of financial position date to determine whether there is objective evidence
that a specific financial asset or a group of financial assets may be impaired. If such evidence exists, the estimated
recoverable amount of that asset is determined and any impairment loss, based on the assessment by the Group of the
value to it of anticipated future cash flows, is recognised in the consolidated statement of income. Specific provisions are
created to reduce all impaired financial contracts to their realisable cash equivalent value.

Liquidity

The Group manages its liquidity through consideration of the maturity profile of its assets and liabilities which is set
out in the liquidity risk disclosures in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements. This requires judgement when
determining the maturity of assets and liabilities with no specific maturities.

5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Short-term commodity murabahas 2,122 8,692
Current account balances with banks 6,374 8,570
Cash in hand 19 15

8,515 17,177

The current account balances with banks are non-profit bearing.

6 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Trade receivables 30,649 26,779
Amounts due from related parties (note 24) 33,857 36,134
Prepayments and other receivables 6,479 2,461
Rent receivable 393 396
Murabaha financing 67 -
Advance to contractors and suppliers 609 532

72,054 66,302
Less: provision for impaired receivables (9,197) (5,300)

62,857 61,002

Amounts due from related parties are unsecured, bear no profit and have no fixed repayment terms.

The trade receivables stated at a carrying amount of US$ 13.26 million (2013: US$ 15.13 million) are secured as collateral
against the ljara and Murabaha financing facilities obtained (note 12).

28  Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

6 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movement in the Group’s provision for impaired receivables is as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

At 1 January 5,300 5,402
(Charge during the year (note 22 4,147 1,888
(Write back during the year (note 22 - (1,990)
Write off during the year (250) -
At 31 December 9,197 5,300

7 INVESTMENTS

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Equity-type instruments at fair value through equity - Unquoted

Real estate related

23,539 24,039

Others 6,892 6,892

30,431 30,931

Less: Provision for impairment (7,376) (7,501)
At 31 December

23,055 23,430

Equity-type investments at fair value through equity include investments in unlisted companies whose shares are not
traded on active markets. The investments are primarily in closely-held companies located in the Gulf Co-operation
Council (“GCC”). The investments are held at cost less provision for impairment due to the unpredictable nature of their
future cash flows and the lack of other suitable methods for accruing at a reliable fair value.

The investments stated at a carrying amount of US$ 5.31 million (2013: US$ 5.31 million) are secured as collateral

29

against the ljara and Murabaha facilities obtained (note 12).

The movement in provision for impairment on investments is as follows:

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

At 1 January 7,501 5,758
Charge during the year 375 1,998
Recovery during the year (138) (255)
Write off during the year (362) -
At 31 December 7,376 7,501

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Expressed in US$000’s)

8 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

At 1 January 98,245 90,811
Purchases during the year - 16,627
Disposals during the year (667) (11,832)
Transfer from investments = 3,938
Dividends received during the year (3,979) (398)
Net share of profit / (I0ss) 832 (901)
At 31 December 94,531 98,245
The Group has an investment in the following joint venture:
Name Principal activities Ownership
2014 2013
Tala Property Development W.L.L. Property management, development and malntenance 60.00% 60.00%
and purchase and sale of properties
Name Country of incorporation Carrying value
2014 2013
Tala Property Development W.L.L. Kingdom of Bahrain 7,081 10,579

Summarised financial information of joint venture

Summarised financial information of the joint venture based on the management accounts, are presented below:

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Total assets

18,085 24,347
Total liabilities 6,283 6,715
Total revenues 1,795 1,841
Total net profit 542 699

The joint venture had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Expressed in US$000’s)

8 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES (continued)

) ) ) Carrying Value
Name of the associate Country of incorporation
2014 2013
Purchase, sale, development and management
Aseel Real Estate Company . . 23.40% 23.40%
of private properties
Durrat Marina Investment Company Ltd. Deyelopment andlsale of commercial and 25.78% 25.78%
residential properties
BIW Labour Accommodation W.L.L. Development and maintenance of labour camps 27.08% 27.08%
Madaen Al Luzi Company Ltd. Development and sale of residential properties 29.28% 29.28%
Takhzeen Warehousing and Storage Management and maintenance of warehouses 35.52% 34.33%
Company B.S.C. (¢)
Al Dhahran Views Project Development .of real estate in Dhahran, Kingdom 23.17% 23.17%
of Saudi Arabia
Development of real estate in Al Khobar, 5 5
Dannat Resort Development Company Ltd Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 49.66% 49.66%
Carrying Value
Name of the associate Country of incorporation
2014 2013
Aseel Real Estate Company Cayman Islands 820 822
Durrat Marina Investment Company Ltd. Cayman Islands 33,020 32,913
BIW Labour Accommodation W.L.L. Kingdom of Bahrain 12,154 12,012
Madaen Al Luzi Company Ltd. Cayman Islands 5,580 5,634
Takhzeen Warehousing and Storage Kingdom of Bahrain 4,406 4212
Company B.S.C. (c)
Al Dhahran Views Project Kingdom of Saudi Arabia 3,599 3,599
Dannat Resort Development Company Ltd. | Cayman Islands 27,871 28,474
87,450 87,666

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

8 INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATES (continued)
Summarised financial information of associates, based on the management accounts, are presented below:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Summarised financial information of associates

Total assets 317,896 323,861
Total liabilities 38,100 44,906
Total revenues 4,511 1,087
(Total net profit / (loss 1,188 (2,763)

The associates had no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.
9 INVESTMENTS IN REAL ESTATE

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

At 1 January 81,114 89,598
Purchases during the year - 3,599
Disposals during the year (15,341) (10,119)
Transferred to properties under development - (1,793)
Unrealised fair value loss on investment in real estate - (171)
At 31 December 65,773 81,114

Investments in real estate are stated at fair value which has been determined based on valuations performed by accredited
independent property valuers. The valuations undertaken were based on open market values, which represent the
prices at which the properties could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing buyers and knowledgeable willing
sellers in an arm’s length transaction.

Investments in real estate based on valuations performed by external property valuers amounted to US$ 74.92 million.
However, based on the illiquid nature of the real estate market and slowdown within the economic environment,
the management believes the current carrying value of investments in real estate amounting to US$ 65.77 million
approximates its fair value.

Investments in real estate stated at a carrying amount of US$ 38.85 million (2013: US$ 40.09 million) are secured as
collateral against the ljara and Murabaha facilities obtained (note 12).
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Expressed in US$000’s)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Building Machinery

on  equipment Computer Motor Capital
quipment, hardware . work-in- Total
leasehold furniture and software vehicles roaress
land  and fixtures prog
Cost
At 1 January 2014 4,284 4,627 1,289 1,281 2,179 13,660
Additions - 406 73 178 1,026 1,683
Disposals - - 6) - 6)
At 31 December 2014 4,284 5,033 1,362 1,453 3,205 15,337
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014 554 3,897 1,201 933 - 6,585
Charge 173 519 59 197 - 948
Disposals - - - €} - €}
At 31 December 2014 727 4,416 1,260 1,127 - 7,530
Net book amount:
At 31 December 2014 3,657 617 102 326 3,205 7,807
At 31 December 2013 3,730 730 88 348 2,179 7,075

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment charged to the consolidated statement of income is as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

(Depreciation charged to contract costs (note 18 296 239
Depreciation charged to expenses 652 738
948 977

11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Lease rent payables (note 11.1) 50,105 50,105
Accruals and other payables 12,635 18,415
Case compensation - 10,870
Trade payables (note 11.2) 5,381 4,597
Amounts due to related parties (note 11.3) 213 1,612
Retentions payable 1,359 1,268

69,693 86,867
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

11 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Note 11.1
The Group entered into a long term lease contract with the Ministry of Industry and Commerce (“MOIC”) in December
2005, effective from May 2006, for a period of 50 years.

In accordance with the terms of the agreement with the MOIC, from the date of signing the agreement, no lease rent
is payable for the first two years of the lease period, from 2006 to 2007. Lease rent payable, for the lease period (from
2008-2025), has been set-off against the expenditure incurred by the Group on the reclamation of the leasehold land.
Thereafter, the Group is required to pay lease rental over thirty years (from 2026 to 2056).

Note 11.2
Trade payables are generally payable within 60 to 90 days of the suppliers’ invoice date.

Note 11.3
Amounts due to related parties are unsecured, bear no profit, have no fixed repayment terms and are authorised by the
Group’s management.

12 IJARA AND MURABAHA FINANCING

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

liara payable 803 2,947
Murabaha payable 35,180 37,010
Total liara and Murabaha financing 35,983 39,957

The Group has obtained ljara and Murabaha financing to fund the acquisition of investments, purchase of properties and
to meet working capital requirements. These liabilities bear market rates of profit and are repayable in accordance with
the repayment terms agreed with respective banks.

13 SHARE CAPITAL

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Authorised

) 150,000 150,000
375,000,000 (31 December 2013: 375,000,000 ordinary shares of US$0.40 each

Issued and fully paid-up

Opening balance

286,511,225 (31 December 2013: 286,511,225) ordinary shares of US$0.40
each

Treasury shares

Less: 1,627,825 (31 December 2013: 1,627,825) treasury shares of US$0.40 (651) (651)
each

Closing balance

284,883,400 (31 December 2013: 284,883,400) ordinary shares of US$ 0.40 113,953 113,953
each

114,604 114,604

Treasury shares represent shares issued to Tameer for Private Management W.L.L., a subsidiary of the Company, for the
employees’ share option plan.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

13 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Additional information on shareholding pattern

Names and nationalities of the major shareholders and the number of shares they hold, without considering the treasury
shares, are disclosed below (where their shareholding amounts to more than 5% or more of outstanding shares):

At 31 December 2014

Number of

Name Incorporation shares holding %
KFH Capital Investment Company Kuwait 27,025,491 9.43%
Dubai Islamic Bank United Arab Emirates 19,748,883 6.89%
Baitk Investment Company Kuwait 19,036,298 6.64%
Others Various 220,700,553 77.03%

286,511,225 100%

At 31 December 2014

Name Incorporation Nun;t;:;:sf holding %
Al-Muthana Investment Company Kuwait 47,448,384 16.56%
Dubai Islamic Bank United Arab Emirates 19,748,883 6.89%
Al-Watani Investment Company Kuwait 16,060,251 5.61%
Others Various 203,253,707 70.94%

286,511,225 100%

The Company has only one class of equity shares and the holders of these shares have equal voting rights. Further, all
the shares issued are fully paid.

Distribution schedule of shares, setting out the number and percentage of holders is disclosed below:

At 31 December 2014

0

No. of No. of ouct);tt:rtuailinA)
shares shareholders 9
shares

Categories:
Less than 1% 105,555,476 791 36.84%
1% up to less than 5% 134,181,375 21 46.83%
5% up to less than 10% 46,774,374 2 16.33%
286,511,225 814 100%
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Inovest B.S.C.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Expressed in US$000’s)

13 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Additional information on shareholding pattern (continued)

At 31 December 2013

No. of No. of ou(;;tt:r:?ilir:/;
shares shareholders shares

Categories:
Less than 1% 127,961,403 948 44.66%
1% up to less than 5% 75,292,304 14 26.28%
5% up to less than 10% 35,809,134 2 12.50%
10% up to less than 50% 47,448,384 1 16.56%
286,511,225 965 100%

At 31 December 2014, the Board of Directors collectively hold 0.61% of the shares of the total issued and fully

paid-up share capital of the Company (31 December 2013: 2.52%)).
Details of shares owned by the directors of the Group are as follows:

31 December 2014

Numbur of shares

2014

Fareed Soud Al-Fozan 962,650
Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi 474,723
Bader Khalifa Al Adsani 100,000
Mohammed Ebrahim Al-Nughaimish 78,050
Bashar Naser Al-Tuwaijri 78,050
Abdulrahman Yousif Fakhro 49,530

1,743,003

31 December 2013

Numbur of shares

2013

Dr. Mohammed Abdulla Fahad Al-Madi 5,045,104
Fareed Soud Al-Fozan 962,650
Samir Yagoob Al-Nafisi 474,723
Jamal Abdul Rahman Al-Rowaiyeh 230,238
Ahmed Rashed Al-Qattan 200,511
Talal Khalid Al-Nesef 94,160
Mohammed Ebrahim Al-Nughaimish 78,050
Bashar Naser Al-Tuwaijri 78,050
Abdulrahman Yousif Fakhro 49,530

7,213,016

36 Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014



1€ jaoumna Pl g8 s 6aag0ll dlloll pilgdll Jga wialay)
(dpayp001 W)l WU &iguo &Ll

Gl liall

Guigild ghlyial i
gl Galisbl sl il @y oo 71 Jagad paiull (o wiliny aild asp il oliaillg gugadl aylal olapill ogile) g
B8 e bl o o 9830l Jlodl yuly (o 70- wbaliinll éluy loaie gl Jugaill 1ia Jio @lay) 5365 ol a4y jgaug
LA 8T iAol gyl Gpno @88lgo sl Jgaall a2ig gisadlagyhill uléasll g gild lale o gl angll 58 U] 61jgL)
gl galinll gdl Jugas GI Jo oy pod 1P juouugs Plg M€ juowns Pl g8 duaiioll wlgiudl JUs Pluns G8lal degonoll

,o.m.wiJlJL,ga' @bLual R
alhladas plail Bdgécgonoll G@lhgol8)alall a4 il ol wlhlad @alsell doydllg i) psw (u Gl Gbolinllin Jioy

&Gljall pmuwl 2
Ua8lagoll J81ga ol (o ljall 9 Loy ndinoll 5glooll pall ansoll lhugioll 60145 130 (Hos

powlljlanaléglle .a
el @l pun a2y gaowll ayaa jlanl sl Yl jalall ol gl duowl dorll G963 il dlanioll dloll doleo iy
aylail wla il Hgild laode pai el angll g8 aolanin] (o) yadg &rjgild Jald jue duoll in o) ool jlan] sglle Lol gle

Qylic uljloiiwl o Jaa

[ | EPNTIURY o M€ juowga Pl

2,0 ol (lo,] alay)) wloniuoll Al elayiuwl
erl (Rl dyyloc wljlodiw] gy (o @680 Lwlbo
€00 Vlo Wlalioolb ddlsio wllim i (JAaa
€.€ ol Jlul A
v - el al)loduwll o 486 o]l jue dalell doudll Sl
1EVE) - (10 2l 84220 005 &gaus3 (20 ik o)l

0,JoV 0,0,V

lo)) aliay]

J lo2g lejlail ol &yliios (Glsil @é.,g}.oi)ﬂg; U9 M diios8 JLJl wléniuoll (A58 ¢la il degonoll viold dindl Jla
lojlad) o3 &yliiodl Hb watiiwl 289 wlEleaiwll oinm Juldo wlegdaoll dlloial purdil dcgonoll Jud (o @lnao dwlys clya)
wléniuol déal Wlia a2 odg (&yliioll 03 gle gALlAl Joc willniy Ug losig

lof aliay]
uaa dic aii oo gualll o 808 P 8ale] gy (e b dygus gle sl o lad 0 5xiubl 6 31 foiiuoll G8lg diudl JUa
Ao alayiulg @é._u.oi)”g; U940 1,0 0j289 &y duguuddl (o 8)luung @é.l}.cﬂ Wga ygulo 0 jlador diyaroll édyylaill oo il 59

Gaiuoll apapll ylso g4 pol g Hgulo M ojadg dlios

1€ eJlodl jup sl Gpo. gl gl

1€

PV



37

Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

14 RESERVES

a. Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law and the Company’s articles of association, 10% of the net
profit for the year is required to be transferred to a statutory reserve. The Company may resolve to discontinue such
annual transfers when the reserve equals 50% of paid up share capital. The reserve is not available for distribution,
except in circumstances as stipulated in the Bahrain Commercial Companies Law and following the approval of the
Central Bank of Bahrain. As the Group has reported net losses during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 31
December 2013, no transfer was made to the statutory reserve.

b. Share option reserve
This represents the difference between the grant price and fair value of the Company’s share options issued to the
Group’s employees in accordance with the Employee Share Option Plan (“ESOP”) Scheme.

c. Treasury shares
This represents weighted average cost of own shares held in treasury and under the employee incentive scheme.

d. Share premium

Amounts collected in excess of the par value of the issued share capital during any new issue of shares, net of issue
costs, are treated as share premium. This amount is not available for distribution, but can be utilised as stipulated in the
Bahrain Commercial Companies Law.

15 INCOME FROM INVESTMENT IN REAL ESTATE

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Reversal of excess accruals (note 15.1) 2,653 6,012
Realised gains on sale of investment in real estate 1,613 431
Property related facilities income 725 455
Rental income 516 404
Unrealised fair value losses on investment in real estate - (171)
Loss recognised on settlement of receivables (note 15.2) - (1,474)

5,507 5,657

Note 15.1

During the year, the Group reversed excess accruals amounting to US$ 2.6 million relating to completed and sold
projects. A detailed exercise was undertaken by the Group to assess the likelihood of payments against these accruals.
[t was concluded that as the projects are completed and sold and no further work is required on these projects, the
accruals are no longer required.

Note 15.2

During the year 2013, an investor who purchased 5 plots of land in prior years, agreed to settle his outstanding balance
by returning 3 plots of land. This resulted in reduction of trade receivables by US$ 5 million, loss on settlement of US$
1.5 million and recovery of provision amounting to US$ 2 million against the receivable balance.
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Expressed in US$000’s)

16 INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Dividend income 230 528
Gain - 45
230 573

17 INCOME FROM ADVISORY SERVICES

Income from advisory fees mainly represent fees earned by the Group with respect to project structuring for related
parties.

18 NET INCOME FROM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Contract income 14,007 11,314
Contract costs (11,764) (10,550)
2,243 764

The contract costs include depreciation amounting to US$ 296 thousand (2013: US$ 239 thousand) (note 10).

19 OTHER INCOME

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Electricity and water services 1,876 1,279
(Discount on settlement (note 19.1 1,427
Murabaha / Mudaraba profit 128 352
Others 107 273
3,538 1,904
Note 19.1

In the past, the Group recognised a liability for a guarantee provided to a financial institution on behalf of a project
company, as the project company had defaulted on the facility. During the current period the Group settled the facility
for the project company and availed a 50 cent to a dollar discount on settlement.

20 STAFF COSTS

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Salaries and benefits 4,848 4,247
Other staff expenses 832 338
5,680 4,585
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

21 GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Rent, rates and taxes 1,054 1,057
Legal and professional consultancy 637 724
Advertising and marketing 470 358
Board member expenses 150 354
Other expenses 894 600

3,205 3,093

22 PROVISION - NET

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Provision for impaired receivables - net (note 6) 4,147 (102)
Provision for impaired investments - net (note 7) 237 1,743
Provision for case compensation B 3,288

4,384 4,929

23 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net income for the year attributable to equity
holders of the parent by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the parent for the year (8,845) (4,943
Weighted average number of shares outstanding at the beginning
and end of the year
Earnings per share - US$ cents (1.35) (1.74)

284,883 284,883

The Company does not have any potentially dilutive ordinary shares, hence the diluted loss per share and basic loss
per share are identical.

24 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS

Related parties comprise major shareholders, directors of the Group, entities owned or controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by them and companies affiliated by virtue of shareholding in common with that of the Group and
Shari’a Supervisory Board members and external auditors.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The Group enters into transactions, arrangements and agreements with its related parties in the ordinary course of
business at terms and conditions approved by the Board of Directors. The above mentioned transactions and balances
arose from the ordinary course of business of the Group. Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured. The
Group did not provide or receive any guarantee for any related party payables or receivables. All related party exposures
are performing and are free of any provision for possible credit losses.
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Expressed in US$000’s)

24 RELATED PARTY BALANCES AND TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The related party tansactions included in the consolidated financil statements are as follows;

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Key Key
2 . management 2 . management
o | Associates o | Associates
e} and personnel/ |  Other e} and personnel/ | Other
2 = Board | related| Total| £ - Board | related | Total
o joint . [ joint .
3 venture members/ | parties 3 venture members/ | parties
@) external nh external
auditors auditors
Trade and other receivables - 29,828 21| 3,440 33,857 - 30,567 316| 5,251 36,134
Trade and other payables - 49 88 76 213 | 504 374 150] 1,168| 2,196
The related party tansactions included in the consolidated financil statements are as follows:
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Key Key
. management : management
g ASSOCIE;?; personnel/ | Other g Assome;tr?(sj personnel/ | Other
k] oint Board | related Total| © oint Board | related| Total
% ) members/ | parties 2 J members/ | parties
%) venture <] venture
3 external I external
nh auditors (@] auditors
Income
Income from advisory services - 533 27 189 749 - 814 56| 4,381 5,251
Net income from construction 49 ) 50 520 570 ) 3) 07| 1138/ 1,142
contracts
Other income - 274 - - 274 - 260 - 48 308
Total 24 807 77 709 | 1,593 - 1,051 83 5,567 | 6,701
Expenses
Staff costs (631) - (2,374) - | (2,905)| (318) - (2,604) - (2,922
General and administrative
expenses (83) - (48) (131)| (83) (78) (194) (48) (403)
(631) (83) (2,374) (48) | (3,036)| (401) (78) (2,798) (48)| (3,325)
(Loss) / income for the year | (489) 724 (2,339) 661 | (1,443) | (401) 973 (2,715)| 5,519 3,377

Compensation of the key management personnel is as follows:

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Salaries and other benefits 2,293 2,438
End of service benefits 612 166
2,905 2,604
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

25 SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segmental information is presented in respect of the Group’s business segments. A business segment is a group of assets
and operations engaged in providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are different to those
of other business segments. For management purposes, the Group is organised into four major business segments.

The accounting policies of the segments are the same as those applied in the preparation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Transactions between segments are
conducted at estimated market rates on an arm'’s length basis.

Segment information is disclosed as follows:

31 December 2014
Development Property
Investment Construction and sale of andfacility | . . .
and related . . Eliminations Total
. Contracts industrial | management
services .
plots services
et revenues from 1,761 2,043 3,889 760 - 8,653
external customers
Inter-segment transactions - 258 - 83 (341) -
Income from investments 230 - - - - 230
Net share of profit / (loss)
from investment IﬂlaJOIﬂt 703 ) 109 B B 830
venture and associates
((note 8
Other income 1,458 114 1,963 3 - 3,538
Total revenue 4,172 2,615 5,961 846 (341) 13,253
Segment (loss) / profit (5,550) 1,028 1,016 (81) (258) (3,845)
Segment assets 256,807 32,408 64,814 2,691 (88,597) 268,123
Segment liabilities 53,766 10,134 56,259 1,417 (15,900) 105,676
31 December 2013
Development Property
Investment Construction and sale of andfacility | . . .
and related . . Eliminations Total
. Contracts industrial | management
services .
plots services
Net revenues from 5,006 765 3,677 983 - 10,431
external customers
Inter-segment transactions - 192 28 81 (301) -
Income from investments 573 B - - - 573
Net share of profit / (loss)
from investment |n.ajomt (966) ) 65 B B (901)
venture and associates
((note 8
Other income 186 391 1,325 2 - 1,904
Total revenue 4,799 1,348 5,095 1,066 (301) 12,007
Segment (loss) / profit (11,726) 446 6,305 224 (192) (4,943)
Segment assets 273,161 30,310 65,058 3,174 (78,594) 293,109
Segment liabilities 65,377 9,065 57,519 1,819 (6,956) 126,824
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

(Expressed in US$000’s)

26 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Credit-related commitments include commitments to extend guarantees and acceptances which are designed to meet
the requirements of the Group’s customers. Guarantees and acceptances commit the Group to make payments to third
parties on behalf of customers in certain circumstances.

The Group has the following credit related commitments:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Guarantees 74,310 17,992

During the year the Group has provided guarantee on behalf of one it's group company Tamcon Contracting Co. B.S.C.
(c) amounting to US$ 66 million to a conventional non-islamic bank.

The Group has the following operating lease commitments:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Future minimum lease payments:

844 755
Within one year
After one year but not more than five years 1,341 2,311
Total 2,185 3,066

27 FIDUCIARY ASSETS

The assets managed on behalf of customers, to which the Group does not have any legal title are not included in the
consolidated statement of financial position. At 31 December 2014, the carrying value of such assets is US$ 268 million
(31 December 2013: US $ 282 million).

28 RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is defined as the combination of severity and frequency of potential loss over a given time horizon and is inherent
in the Group’s activities. Risk can be expressed in the dimensions of potential severity of loss (magnitude of impact)
and potential loss frequency (likelihood of occurrence). Risk management is the process by which the Group identifies
key risks, sets consistent understandable risk measures, chooses which risks to reduce, which to increase and by
what means, and establishes procedures to monitor the resulting risk position. Risk management is the discipline at the
core of every financial institution and encompasses all the activities that affect its risk profile. It involves identification,
measurement, monitoring and controlling risks to ensure that optimum value is created for the shareholders through an
optimum return on equity by an appropriate trade-off between risk and return.

Effective risk management is the cornerstone of capital structure. The vision of risk management is to address all
aspects of risk which the Group may be exposed to. The Group’s risk function is independent of lines of business
and the Head of Risk is appointed by the Board Risk Committee, who then report to the Board of Directors. The key
role of the risk management function is defining, identifying and reducing risks, and being independent and objective.

The Group has exposure to risks, which include credit, market, liquidity, reputation, compliance and operational risks.
Market risk includes currency, equity price and profit rate risk. Taking risk is core to the financial business. The Group’s
aim is to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential adverse effect on the Group’s
financial performance.
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

28 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Risk governance

The Board of Directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the oversight of the risk management framework and
reviewing its risk management policies and procedures. The risks both at portfolio and transactional levels are managed
and controlled through the Board Risk Committee.

a) Credit risk

Credit risk is defined as the potential that a borrower or counterparty will fail to meet its obligations in accordance with the
agreed terms. The goal of credit risk management is to maximize the Group’s risk-adjusted rate of return by maintaining
credit exposures within acceptable parameters. The Group has well-defined policies and procedures for identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling credit risk in all the Group’s activities.

i) Maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit enhancements
The Group’s maximum exposure to on-balance sheet credit risk is reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets on
the consolidated statement of financial position. The impact of possible netting of assets and liabilities to reduce potential

credit exposure, is not significant.

Credit risk for off-balance sheet financial instruments is defined as the possibility of sustaining a loss as a result of another
party to a financial instrument failing to perform in accordance with the terms of the contract.

The table shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the consolidated statement of financial
position. The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the effect of mitigation through the use of collateral agreements,
but after impairment provisions, where applicable.

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Trade and other receivables 72,054 65,730

72,054 65,730
Commitments and contingent liabilities 74,310 17,992
Total 146,364 83,722

i) Aging of past due but not impaired facilities

The following table summarises the aging of past due but not impaired assets as of:

31 December 2014
Up to 6 months | 6-12 months 1-3 years 8 years and Total
above
Trade and other receivables 12,542 16,721 1,385 - 30,648
31 December 2013
Up to 6 months 6-12 months 1-3 years 3 years and Total
above
Trade and other receivables 4,125 21,813 782 59 26,779

The Group’s trade and other receivable amounting to US$ 25.51 million (31 December 2013: US$ 24.08 million) are
secured against lease hold rights over the underlying land.

Trade and other receivables amounting to US$ 11.78 million (31 December 2013: US$ 11.03 million) have been classifed
as individually impaired.

Inovest BSC Annual Report 2014
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

28 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
a) Creditrisk (continued)
iii)  Concentration risk
Concentration risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar economic activities or activities in the
same geographic region or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to
be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. The Group seeks to manage its concentration
risk by establishing and constantly monitoring geographic and industry wise concentration limits.The Group’s exposure

analysed on geographic regions and industry sectors is as follows:

The Group’s exposure analysed ongeographic regions and industry sectors is sa follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Assets | Liabilities | liabilities|  Assets| Liabilities | COntingent
liabilities
Geographic region:
Kingdom of Bahrain 224,948 | 105,676 74,310 246,317 116,893 17,992
Other GCC countries 43,175 - - 46,792 9,931 -
268,123 | 105,676 74,310 293,109 126,824 17,992
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Assets | Liabilities | liabilities|  Assets| Liabilities| Corungent
liabilities
Industry sector:
Real estate 179,076 99,844 74,310 194,009 118,963 17,992
Non real estate 89,047 5,777 - 99,100 7,861 -
268,123 | 105,621 74,310 293,109 126,824 17,992

b) Market risk

Market risk arises from fluctuations in profit rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. Market risk is the risk that
changes in market risk factors, such as currency risk, profit rates and equity prices will effect the Group’s income or the
value of its holding of financial instruments.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return on risk.

i) Profit rate risk

Profit risk is the risk that the Group’s profitability or fair value of its financial instruments will be adversely affected by the
changes in profit rates. The Group’s assets and liabilities are not considered by management to be sensitive to profit rate
risk.

ii) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group views the United States Dollar as its functional currency. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had net
foreign currency exposure in respect of Bahraini Dinars, Saudi Riyals, Kuwaiti Dinars and United Arab Emirates Dirhams.
Except for Kuwaiti Dinars, the currencies are pegged to the United States Dollar and thus are considered not to represent
significant currency risk. The Group’s exposure to Kuwaiti Dinars is considered minimal.
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Inovest B.S.C.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014
(Expressed in US$000’s)

28 RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
b)  Market risk (continued)
iii)  Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equities decrease as the result of changes in the levels of equity indices
and the value of individual stocks. As the Group has no quoted equity investments, the Group is not exposed to this risk.
The Group has unquoted investments carried at cost less provision for impairment where the impact of changes in equity
prices will only be reflected when the investment is sold or deemed to be impaired, when the consolidated statement of
income will be impacted, or when a third party transaction in the investment gives a reliable indication of fair value which
will be reflected in owners’ equity.

c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the potential inability of the Group to meet cash flows of its maturing obligations to a counterparty. Liquidity
risk management seeks to ensure that the Group has the ability, under varying scenarios, to fund increases in assets and

meet maturing obligations as they arise. Management of the Group is responsible for its liquidity management.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s assets and liabilities as of 31 December 2014 based on
expected periods to cash conversion from the consolidated statement of financial position date:

Upto 1to3 3to 6 6 months 1to5 5t010 Over No fixed

1 Month months months to 1 year years years 10 years maturity fotal

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 7,757 758 - - - - - 8,515
Trade and other receivables - - - 5,766 57,102 - - - 62,857
Investments - - - - 23,055 - - - 23,055
RE .
Investments in real estate - - - B 65,773 - - - 65,773
Properties under development - - - - 5,685 - - - 5,685
Property, plant and equipment - - - B - - - 7,807 7,807
Total assets 7,757 758 - 5,755 246,046 - - 7,807 268,123
LIABILITIES
Trade and other

payablesljara and - 742 4,695 - 14,151 - 50,105 - 69,693

murabaha
financing 1,897 - 2,696 5,539 25,851 B - - 35,983
Total liabilities 1,897 742 7,391 5,539 40,002 - 50,105 - 105,676
Net liquidity gap 5,860 16 (7,391) 216 206,044 - (50,105) 7,807 162,447
Cumulative liquidity gap 5,860 5,876 (1,515) (1,299) 204,745 204,745 154,640 162,447
Contingencies and ) ) ) ) 74,310 ) . ) 74,310

commitments
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